PRIESTS NATIVES OF KILMURRY-IBRICKANE PARISH

The first priest’s name, a native of the parish that I can locate is Dean Kenny who died P.P. of Ennis. He was born in 1792 at Coorigan Park, near Mungret, where his parents lived at the time of his birth. He was son of Matthias Kenny and C. Howley of Traenmana (Tirmana).

The Kennys settled in Tirmana about 1715. It was never confiscated land and it was owned by the Mahons. Edward Kenny of that period married Miss Mahon and so became owner. Almost two hundred years later General Kelly-Kenny became owner in fee of the estate as the result of descent. It was the latter disposed of the property to the tenantry.

Edward (supra) Kenny’s father was also Edward. He went to France with the Irish Brigade from Limerick. He married there a sister of Field Marshal Peter de Lacy. This Edward came back to Ireland for a time and left his only son in Clare married to Miss McMahon. The family residence of the Mahons and Kennys was the only “Big House” west of Ennis in Catholic hands during the penal times.

Dean Kenny was a student of Maynooth and was ordained in 1814. He was a curate at Cooraclare-Kilmihil in 1815. There is a tradition that whilst C.C. there he got a direction from the Captain of an English frigate lying at Cappagh, Kilrush, to make known to the priests at conference in Cooraclare that Napoleon had been defeated at Waterloo. This intelligence reached the priests fifteen days after the event. Father Kenny was parish priest of Ogonnelloe 1817-19. He was parish priest of Kilrush from 1827-48. In Kilrush he procured the site and built the shell of the present church, including the tower but not the spire. The erection of this magnificent church structure in 1839 was a giant achievement in those days in view especially of the prevailing poverty. He was appointed P.P. of Ennis in 1848. Here he built the present Convent of Mercy. He grew blind when he was old and had to be led around. He died on January 11, 1879, at the age of eighty-seven years. Vir fraeclarus ac venerabilis.

REV. TIMOTHY KELLY

Father Tim Kelly, as he was popularly known, was born at Craggaknock in the parish of Kilmurry-Ibrickane, of John Kelly and Anne Butler (Crusheen), in the year 1803 John Kelly belonged to the third generation of the family resident at Craggaknock. The present descendants are in the eighth generation. He was educated at Maynooth where he was distinguished as a student and graduated to the Dunboyne establishment to pursue a higher course of studies. Exigencies of the mission, however, resulted in his return to the diocese. In the year 1831 he was appointed parish priest of Cooraclare and Kilmihil which were then a parochial unit. He was then twenty-eight years of age. After a three years pastorate he felt the need of a new church at Kilmihil as the Masses of obligation had to be offered in wayside chapels which were no better than barns. These improvised buildings were often located in remote areas and so a centrally placed church at Kilmihil met the need of a very large area in the combined parishes. The Pastor’s difficulty was finance as much of that countryside was mountain and bogland, holdings were small and the owners were very poor. Father Kelly can​vassed local opinion, which was not encouraging in view of prevailing poverty and the always present fear of landlord revenge. Nonetheless, the optimistic Pastor procured a site, had the foundations dug and a public meeting was con​vened at the site. Here Father Kelly reminded those who had assembled there of the people’s cruel yet heroic past and the future religious and civil opportunities made avail​able to them five years previously through emancipation. He appealed for goodwill and co-operation. The effect of his address was electric. Contributions began to filter in. The church at Kilmihil was built and paid for - an achieve​ment in 1834. Two years later he built the present church at Cooraclare. Here, owing to landlord hostility, a swamp had to be availed of as a site. The swamp was slightly larger than the area of the church and access to it was a footpath leading to the public road. At a later period the present grounds were added to the original site. The Coora​clare church is a substantial, commodious building and it was opened in 1836. Later Father Kelly built Cree church from funds made. available by Father Tim’s predecessor, Father Patrick Kelly, known as “Priest” Kelly because of his herculean stand against the local ascendancy of the period. These three churches, built in rapid succession and in the teeth of poverty, made adequate provision for the religious needs of all areas in the parish. These together with seven schools - the first since the hedge schools - were the building activities of the youthful Pastor. Fifteen years of religious and educational progress to which penal memories were gradually yielding had thus passed by when the terrible scourge of the famine descended upon his parish in 1845 -’47. His reaction to the prevailing distress was what one would expect of the Pastor and the man sprung from the people. He was in every sense the Father of his flock. He organised the provision of meals for the numbers who were starving and when every resource failed he sold all he had, even his horse, to buy food for his people. His extraordinary charity became a general topic of conversa​tion not alone locally but even as far as Dublin. In the latter place he exercised far-reaching influence in govern​ment and philanthropic centres to provide food for his parishioners.

In October, 1848, Father Kelly was transferred as parish priest to Kilrush. At Kilrush he found the shell of the present magnificent church. When opened to public wor​ship the sacred edifice consisted of four walls and a slated roof. The walls were not plastered on the inside nor was the roofing celled. There was no church furniture except an improvised altar. On the morrow of the famine Father Kelly soon set himself to the task of completing the church. The walls were plastered on the inside and the roofing was celled. Three altars were erected. The nave and transepts of the church were floored with good regular flags. Seats for the entire floor space of the church, including the galleries, were provided and an organ, pulpit and four confessionals were soon added to the interior equipment of the church. The present spire was erected on the tower which formed part of the original fabric and the present artistic porch and a sacristy were built. These, together with the gates and iron railings in front of the church, were provided at a cost of £3,000 which was paid off by the energetic Pastor in a few years under post famine conditions.

A great Jesuit mission - the first ever - concluded at Kilrush on May 28, 1854. Availing of the fervour resulting from it, Father Kelly held a public meeting to help win public support towards the introduction of the Sisters of Mercy to Kilrush. Enthusiastic support was forthcoming and a subscription list was opened. The response was astonishingly generous. In due course the building of the present Convent was begun. It is the finest building in all West Clare and is a monument to Father Kelly’s zeal, energy and artistic taste. He died on March 15, 1869. The obse​quies took place on March 17 and since those of St. Sinon himself there is not on record here in the West anything to compare with the tribute of veneration paid to their faithful Sagart not alone by his parishioners but by the public of West Clare. His remains were borne through the town on to Cappagh and back to their last resting place within the church, near which there is that lifelike monu​ment to him in marble, erected by a grateful and appre​ciative people. There is a portrait of him in oils at the Mercy Convent in Kilrush.

Judged by the standards of priestly attainment, Fr. Tim Kelly was a man of acknowledged sanctity, selflessness, intellectual calibre, pastoral activity and achievement com​parable with the best of his time within his own country. Familiar as I am with the outstanding reputation he enjoyed in three present West Clare parishes and having heard of him at first hand from many who knew him, I feel that no priest belonging to Corca Bhascin territory has been his peer as a priest or none that is ever known to have ministered there - and it has its celebrities - were capable of bearing all round comparison with him. I regard Father Tim Kelly as the greatest ecclesiastic that we know of, that has adorned this countryside since St. Sinon himself.

REV. JAMES O’DOHERTY

Father O’Doherty was born at Clonadrum on the 24th November, 1843. He received his secondary education at Mount Mellary from which he graduated to Maynooth Col​lege where he was ordained in 1869. He was curate in Kildy​sart, 1869-1872. He served in a similar capacity in Kilmihill, 1872-1874. He was transferred to Killanena where he was curate, 1874-1875, and he later ministered in Lorrah, 1875-1876. In response to an appeal of the English hierarchy for priests, Father O’Doherty volunteered for service in the diocese of Salford where he ministered for upwards of thirty years. He died at Rishton, 29th March, 1903, and is buried at St. Huberts at Great Harwood.

THE VERY REV. DENIS CANON MURPHY

Canon Denis Murphy was born in the townland of Boulaveg in 1862. He received his primary education at Scropul school. He was one of the last to make his studies at, the old diocesan college in Ennis and one of the first at St. Flannan’s College. He studied for the priesthood at Maynooth College where he was ordained in 1888. Father Murphy spent a number of years on the temporary mission in Australia and on his return to Ireland he ministered at Scariff (?), Dunkerrin, and Roscrea where he became the first adminis​trator when Roscrea became a mensal parish in 1919. Father Murphy became parish priest of Clondegad In 1921 and was transferred to Kilfarboy in January, 1932. Whilst In Miltown he was made a Canon. He died on the 17th February, 1949.

Canon Murphy was throughout his missionary life a great student. All his spare time was spent on study in var​ious fields. He amassed an amount of information and was a man of great erudition. This did not manifest itself in his ordinary conversation. It was only on rare occasions that his vast store of knowledge manifested itself.

THE VERY REV. JOHN CANON MEADE

Canon Meade was born at Clohanateinne in 1876. He made his primary studies at Mullagh N.S. and continued his studies at St. Flannans College, Ennis. He completed his studies at Maynooth College where he was ordained in 1903. He spent three years after ordination in a temporary foreign mission in Glasgow. On his return to the diocese he was appointed curate at Broadford. Later he was transferred to Tulla and from thence to Roscrea and afterwards to Ennis where he eventually became administrator. His first appointment as parish priest was to Doora. Subsequently he was appointed parish priest of Tulla and became a vicar foraine, He was appointed a member of the diocesan chapter and finally he succeeded Canon Hogan as parish priest of Kilrush where he died on 6th March, 1959. Canon Meade was kindly, priestly and a pastoral man of outstanding merit.

REV. JAMES MURPHY, C.S.Sp., D.D., D.Ph.

Father James Murphy was born at Mullagh on 16th July. 1878. He attended the national school at Mullagh where he completed his primary education. He made his secondary studies at Rockwell Junior Scholasticate which he entered upon in October, 1894. He was prefect at Rockwell, 1898-1901. He made his philosophical studies at the Holy Ghost semin​ary at Chevilly, near Paris, 1902-1903. He read theology at the French Seminary and Gregorian University, Rome, 1903-1907. He obtained the D.D. and D.Ph. He professed at Grig​non,. France, and later at St. Mary’s College, Rathmines, Dublin, 1907-1911. He became Professor and Director of the Junior Scholasticate, Blackrock College, Dublin, 1911-1917. He was Professor of Dogmatic Theology, Senior Scholasticate, 1917-1947, at Kimmage Manor and The Castle, Blackrock, Dublin, 1947-1952. He then retired to Kimmage Manor, Dub​lin, where he died on 1st May, 1952. As a professor of dogmatic theology, Dr. Murphy assumed full national pro​portions.

RIGHT REV. MONSIGNOR JOHN SEXTON

Monsignor Sexton . was born at Finuremore in 1888. He received his early education at the national school, Mullagh. He did his secondary studies at Mungret College from whence he proceeded to All Hallows College, Dublin, for the seminary course. John Sexton was ordained at All Hallows College in 1912 for the diocese of Wilcannia Forbes in Aus​tralia. Here he had a successful missionary career, serving in a number of missions. In due course he became a pastor and later dean and finally in recognition of his services he was elevated to the dignity of monsignor in 1954. He was made dean and vicar foraine in 1947, and he celebrated his golden jubilee in 1962. He served in Broken Hill, Cobar, Forbes, and Nyngan.

REV. FRANCIS GRIFFIN., C.S.Sp.

The Rev. Francis Griffin was born at Kilmurry on 16th September, 1893. He was at school in Kilmurry and Mullagh until October, 1907, when he proceeded to Rockwell College where he studied from 1907 to 1911. Here he completed his secondary education. The next two years were spent at Kimmage. He taught at Blackrock from 1913 to 1916. From Blackrock, Francis Griffin went to Fribourg, Switzerland, to pursue his higher studies. He was in Fribourg from 1916 to 1923, having been ordained to the priesthood at Fribourg on 20th December, 1920. On his return to Ireland he taught until 1926 and then proceeded as a missionary to Kilmanjaro where he worked from 1926 to 1934. During his stay in Kilmanjaro he was pro vicar apostolic for two years, that is, from the death of Bishop Gogarty to the arrival of Bishop Byrne. Next Father Griffin became a member of the General Council of the Congregation at Paris from 1934 to 1950 – a trying assignment during the years of the Second World War and subsequently. In 1950 Fr. Griffin was elected Superior General of the Holy Ghost Congregation. He held this high office during the canonical period of twelve years. He retired to Rockwell In 1962 where he is presently a member of the college staff. Election to the highest office in the Holy Ghost congregation is the greatest tribute that can be paid to Fr. Griffin’s ability and the high confidence that was reposed in him by the Holy Ghost Fathers throughout the world.

HIS GRACE MOST REV. DR. McCARTHY, C.S.Sp.

I am now about to write about Kilmurry Ibrickane’s most illustrious son. His Grace Most Rev. John McCarthy, C.S.Sp., was born at Clounlaheen in the Coore area on 27th March, 1896, He went to school to Coore where he came under the benign influence of the late Thomas O’ Gorman. Most of his primary schooling was done at Miltown Malbay N.S. John McCarthy began his secondary studies at Rockwell College in September, 1911. After a distinguished four year course he went to the Novitiate at Kimmage, Co. Dublin, In 1915. He was professed after a year’s novitiate and his schol​asticate was begun in 1916. At the end of a university course in classics and having read philosophy he did a year’s teach​ing in Rockwell followed by two years teaching at Blackrock College. He returned to Kimmage in 1922 to begin his theological studies and was ordained on 21st June, 1925, at All Hallows College, Dublin. After another year’s studies he proceeded to Africa and was stationed at Morogora in Tanganyka where he started the first teachers’ training college in East Africa. After the short period of seven months in Morogora he was appointed superior of the mission and education secretary of the vicariate apostolic of Bogomyo. In the mission there were three thousand practicing Catholics and five thousand catechumens, together with three out-stations which are now thriving missions. Dr. McCarthy returned to Ireland in 1933 as master of novices at Kilshane. His stay however at Kilshane was not protracted, for at the request of the Bishops of Tanganyka he returned to Africa in 1936 and took on the office of education secretary and general liaison between the Bishops and the British Govern​ment until the outbreak of war in 1939 when he was appointed by Rome Regent of the Apostolic Delegation at Mombasa,

Fifty six jurisdictions depended on the delegation at the time. He held this office until he was appointed vicar apostolic at Zanzibar in 1940, He was consecrated Bishop of Nairobi by Archbishop Mathew, Apostolic Delegate, on the Feast of Christ the King that year. Dr. McCarthy was appointed Archbishop of Nairobi in 1954. During the time he was vicar apostolic of Zanzibar and Archbishop of Nairobi, the junior seminary to provide students for the priesthood became his first task. Where there was not a single semin​arian in 1946, there are now ten African priests and two hundred students in the junior seminary. During this period four teachers’ training colleges were opened. There are two of these for boys conducted by the Holy Ghost Fathers. There are also two colleges for girls conducted by nuns that Dr. McCarthy brought from Ireland. There are altogether thirty secondary schools, three hundred and fifty primary schools in the area and the catholic population rose from thirty thousand to one hundred and seventy-five thousand. Besides twenty-five new mission stations were established. A novitiate was founded in 1956 and there are now thirty-five professed nuns with material for a further large supply of nuns in the offing. There is a new Sisters of Mercy hos​pital at Nairobi built and staffed by the Sisters of Mercy at Carysfort, Dublin.

Another important achievement in the archdiocese is the erection of a new cathedral. Dr. McCarthy toured the U.S.A. to collect funds for it. It accommodates between five and six thousand people. It is situated in the centre of Nairobi, the town hall flanking it on one side and the local parliament on the other. The general post office is only a few yards distant. The new cathedral has a tower two hun​dred and fifty-five feet high and the entire project is debt free - an achievement certainly.

THE VERY REV. JOHN DALY, PP.

Father John Daly was born at Kilmurry in 1893 and received his early education at Kilmurry N.S. Part of his secondary education was made at the Christian Brothers’ Schools, Kilrush, and it was completed at St. Flannan’s Col​lege, Ennis, where he was a very successful student. From St. Flannan’s he proceeded to the major seminary at All Hallows College, Dublin, where he was ordained in 1919 for the diocese of Boston, U.S.A. Since then he has laboured with marked success on the mission and he is presently a parish priest in Boston.

THE REV. DANIEL DALY

Father Daniel Daly is a brother of Father John Daly and they are both nephews of the Very Rev. John Canon Meade, a former parish priest of Kilrush. Father Daniel Daly was born in the year 1906. He studied for the priesthood at Clonliffe College, Dublin, where he was ordained in 1932. He served at Sutton and was curate at Castledermot and Glas​nevin. He is presently curate at Merrion where he is striving to pay off the debt which was contracted through the build​ing of the new church there. Father Dan is a very active pastoral man.

THE VERY REV. JOHN KELLY, P.P.

Father John Kelly was born in 1873 at Knocknahilla. He went to school at Scropul N.S. Later he studied at St. Flan​nan’s College, Ennis, and his major seminary education was had at Maynooth College. After ordination he spent three years on a temporary mission at Glasgow and on recall to the diocese he was appointed C.C. at Broadford. After a period in Broadford he was transferred to Kildysart where he ministered for a number of years. He was next at Kilmihil from which he went to Tulla. From Tulla he was appointed PP. Coolmeen from which he became P.P. Kildysart where he died at a ripe age in 1949. He was a good pastoral priest and was always held in high esteem by the priests of the diocese.

REV. MICHAEL MURREN, C.S.Sp.

Fr. Michael Murren was born in 1898. He was a student at Blackrock College from 1911-1916. He was prefect at Blackrock 1916-1918. He was a novice at Kimmage 1918-1919, and a student at the National University 1919-1922. He next was a prefect at Rockwell 1922-1924. Then followed the course in theology at the Castle, Blackrock College 1924-1928. He was ordained in 1927, and in 1928 went as a missionary to Kenya, East Africa, where he laboured from 1928 to 1946. On his return to Ireland in 1946 he joined the professorial staff at Blackrock College. Father Murren is still attached to Blackrock College. He is a nephew of the late Dr. Murphy, C.S.Sp. He died in 1967.

REV. MICHAEL FLANAGAN, C.S.Sp.

Father Michael Flanagan was born at Shanaway in 1902. He attended Shanaway N.S. He made his preliminary sec​ondary studies at the Christian Brothers Schools, Kilrush 1916-1919 and completed them at Blackrock College 1919-1921. Michael Flanagan entered the Holy Ghost novitiate in 1921 at Kimmage and was professed in 1922. He followed a course of studies at the National University and afterwards became a prefect at Rockwell College which office he held until 1926. During the years 1926-32 he pursued his philosophical and theological studies at the Castle, Blackrock College, and was ordained to the priesthood in 1931 at All Hallows. From 1932-48 he was engaged as a missionary in the Archdiocese of Onitsha, Southern Nigeria. Father Flan​agan returned to Ireland in 1948 and joined the professorial staff at Blackrock College. He died in 1966.

REV. JOHN CAHILL, C.S.Sp.

Father John Cahill was born in the townland of Emlagh on November 17, 1905. He went to Annagh N.S. and sub​sequently to Dunsallagh N.S. He made his secondary studies at Blackrock College 1920-24; when he went to the Holy Ghost novitiate at Kimmage. Father Cahill did his phil​osophical and theological studies at the Castle, Blackrock College and at the Missionary College, Kimmage. He was ordained at All Hallows College in June 1934. From 1935 to 1956 he was attached to St. Mary’s College, Port of Spain, Trinidad, West Indies. Since 1957 he is attached to Blackrock College.

REV. JOHN CASEY, C.C.

Father John Casey was born at Quilty in 1909. As a boy he went to Kilmurry School and afterwards he did his sec​ondary studies at Rockwell from which he went to Clonliffe College. He did philosophy at the National University and theology at Clonliffe. He was ordained at Clonliffe In 1935. He ministered at Glendalough, Fairview, Maynooth, Crumlin and Drimnagh where he is presently stationed.

REV. MICHAEL SEXTON, C.C.

Father Michael Sexton was born at Finuremore in 1912. He attended the Mullagh N.S. Afterwards he studied at St. Flannan’s College and Maynooth College where he was ordained in 1939. He was Diocesan Inspector for a short period, after which he was appointed to a curacy at Cranny in 1940. He was transferred to Kildysart in 1945, thence to Cooraclare in 1952 and finally to Kilrush in April 1956. He died on May 20, 1965, whilst still ministering at Kilrush. Father Sexton was a dedicated man, esteemed by his brother priests and beloved by the people in every parish in which be served. He was a priest of uncommon zeal and efficiency.

REV. JAMES O’DWYER, C.C,

Father O’Dwyer was born at Mullagh in 1915. He received his early education at Mullagh N.S. He made his secondary studies at St. Flannan’s College and his ecclesiastical studies at Maynooth. Father  O’Dwyer served in Broadford 1941-42. Then at Dunkerrin 1942-47. He was transferred to Killaloe where he remained until 1955 and there to Shinrone where he presently ministers.

REV. THOMAS McNAMARA, CC.

Father McNamara was born in January 1916. He attend​ed Annagh N.S. When his primary education was complete he received part of his secondary education at the Christian Brothers’ Schools, Kilrush. He completed his secondary studies at St. Flannan’s College from which he went on to Maynooth College where he was ordained in 1943. He was appointed C.C., Carrigaholt, in the Autumn of 1943, where he ministered for twelve years. He was next appointed C.C. Cloughjordan where he spent five years and was then trans​ferred to Castleconnell where he ministered another five years. He was changed to Kilbane in 1965 where he now ministers. During Father McNamara’s curacy at Carrigaholt he renovated the church at Doonaha. It was an old building and in need of repairs. The old roof was removed and the walls were raised to a proper height. The church was re-​roofed, new windows were installed, the entire building was plastered on the outside and the grounds were re-laid. The entire cost exceeded £8,000, all of which was defrayed by Fr. McNamara.

REV. MARTIN O’MEARA, S.M.A.

Father Martin O’ Meara lived at Moloskey. He went to school at Clonadrum and most of his secondary studies were made at the Ennistymon Christian Brothers schools. These studies were completed at the African Missions’ College at Ballinafad. His philosophical and theological studies were made at Kilcolgan and Dromantine (Newry) seminaries re​spectively. He was ordained in 1938 and was appointed to the Society’s mission at Liberia where he has since min​istered.

REV. JAMES J. MEADE, C.S.Sp.

James J. Meade was born at Moloskey in 1915 and he received his early education at Clonadrum N.S. He went to the Junior Scholasticate at Rockwell in 1929. Having com​pleted his secondary studies at Rockwell College he went to the Holy Ghost Novitiate at Kilshane. From the novitiate he went to Kimmage and did his philosophy at University College, Dublin, where he got his degree with honours. He next returned to Rockwell College where he taught for two years, after which he did his theology at Kimmage. He was ordained in 1943 at Clonliffe College, and on the completion of his studies he proceeded to Kenya, East Africa, in Jan​uary. 1945. He taught in Mangu Secondary School for eight years, after which he was appointed parish priest of Ritura in 1953. This was virgin territory for Christianity and difficulties had to be met. A native chieftain gave Father Meade a site for a new church which he built and laid the foundations of a thriving mission. Later he got permission to build a new secondary school at Ritura when Kenya got its freedom. Presently Father Meade is P.P. of Ritura and Superior of the Secondary School. 

THE KILLEEN BROTHERS

Three members of the Killeen family of Carhuligane are priests. The eldest, Father Patrick J. Killeen, belongs to the African Missionary Society. He was born in 1923 and like his brothers, Fathers John and Michael, he attended Mullagh N.S. He did his secondary studies at the Society’s missionary college at Ballinafad. Later he made his philosophical and theological studies at Wilton, Cork, and Dromantine, Newry, where he was ordained in 1946. He pursued a University course in London where he got a degree. He taught at Ballinafad from 1948 to 1961. He was a Latin teacher of out​standing ability. Fr. Killeen went to Nigeria in 1961 where he remained until 1965. In Nigeria he acted in a dual cap​acity as he was engaged simultaneously in teaching and pastoral work. He was re-appointed to the Ballinafad College staff in 1965.

Fr. John Killeen was born in 1925. He did his secondary studies and philosophy at Mungret College, Limerick, from whence he proceeded to St. John’s Seminary, Camarillo, Los Angeles, where he was ordained in 1950. He is on the mis​sion in the Archdiocese of Los Angeles.

Fr. Michael Killeen was born in 1934. He entered Mun​gret College in 1948 where he made his secondary studies and read philosophy. Having completed his studies at Mun​gret in 1953 he became a student of Theology at St. John’s College, Camarillo, where he was ordained for the Arch​diocese of Los Angeles In 1959. Both brothers are working in the Archdiocese.

REV. SEAN SAUNDERS

Sean Saunders was born at Finuremore in 1921. He received his primary education at Mullagh School and his secondary education at St. Flannan’s College, Ennis. From St. Flannan’s he proceeded to Maynooth College where he was ordained in June, 1948. He served as a curate for a number of years in Portroe from which he was transferred to Quin, where he is presently ministering.

REV. JOHN CUNNINGHAM, C.S.Sp.

John Cunningham was born at Emlagh, Quilty in 1922. He went to school at Annagh and later he made his second​ary studies at the Holy Ghost Scholasticate. He continued his higher studies at Kimmage and he was ordained at Clon​liffe College in 1950. In 1957 he went to Nigeria where he spent a period before being transferred to Woodstock, Ontario, Canada, where he is now stationed.

REV. MICHAEL SEXTON

Michael Sexton was born at Finuremore in 1927. He was educated for the priesthood at All Hallows College, Dublin, where he was ordained in 1952. He is ministering in the diocese of Southwark.

REV. JOHN SEXTON John Sexton was born at Rhine, Mullagh. He attended school at Annagh. He studied at St. John’s College, Waterford, where he was ordained in 1957 for the Australian mission, where he is at present ministering in the diocese of Bathurst.

REV. JAMES MORRISSEY.

James Morrisey was born in Ballymackae.  He received his primary education at Quilty School.  He later studied at St Flannan’s College, Ennis and St John’s College, Waterford..  He was ordained on the 11th March 1957 for the Archdiocese of Cardiff.  He is Parish Priest at Morriston, Glamorganshire.

REV. JOHN CLANCY, S.M.A.

John Clancy was born in Carhuligane and went to school at Mullagh.  Later he made various stages of his studies at Ballinafad, Co. Mayo and Dromaline, Newry, where he was ordained in 1954.  He is on a mission in Nigeria.

REV. JOSEPH KELLY

Joseph Kelly was born at Knocknahilla.  He went to the local National School.  He later studied at St. Flannan’s College, Ennis and made his philosophical and theological studies at St.Patrick’s College, Carlow, where he was ordained in 1952.  He is attached to the diocese of Brentwood and is Parish Priest at Dunmow, Essex.

REV. JOHN KELLY

Fr. John Kelly is a younger brother of Fr. Joseph Kelly. He is a Carmelite Father and was ordained in 1961. He is attached to the Carmelite Abbey, Loughrea, Co. Galway. His religious name is Fr. Flannan.

THE DOOHAN BROTHERS

The Rev. John and Michael Doohan are Columban Fathers and they are both at Manila, Philippine Islands. Both brothers received their early education at Doolough National School. They made their secondary studies at St. Flannan’s College and they completed their philosophical and theological studies at St. Columban’s, Navan. Fr. John Doohan was ordained in 1947 and Fr. Michael was ordained in 1957.

REV. KEVIN BOYLE

Kevin Boyle attended the National School at Quilty and he received his secondary education at St. Flannan’s Col​lege. His philosophical and theological studies were made at St. Columban’s, Navan, where he was ordained on 21st December, 1959. As a Columban Father he is on the South American mission at Santiago, Chile.

REV. PATRICK FLYNN

Fr. Flynn was born at Carhuligane in 1942. He attended the Mullagh National School. He received his secondary education at St. Flannan’s College, Ennis and pursued his higher seminary course at St. Patrick’s College, Carlow, where he was ordained in June 1965. He was ordained for the diocese of St. Augustine, Florida, U.S.A.

REV. MICHAEL O’KEEFFE

Rev. Michael O’Keeffe was born in Dromin. He received his early education at Scropul N.S. He studied later at Mount Mellary and completed his ecclesiastical studies at St. Patrick’s College, Carlow. He was ordained for the diocese of Savannagh, U.S.A., in June, 1968.

REV. LIAM O’KEEFFE

Rev Liam O’Keeffe, a brother of Father Michael, is a Columban Father. He was likewise educated at Scropul

N.S. His secondary studies were made at the Ennistymon C.B.S. and his ecclesiastical studies at St. .Columban’s, Navan. He was ordained in December, 1967. He is presently ministering in Korea.

REV. PATRICK DOWNES, C.S.Sp.

Rev Patrick Downes, C.S.Sp., was born at Coore. He received his primary education at Coore N.S. and his secondary education at a Holy Ghost secondary college. Fr. Downes completed his higher studies at Kimmage Manor, Dublin. He was ordained in 1968. He will be appointed to a mission in 1969.


